Lease

(San Antonio Food Bank)

Table of Contents

1. Basic Information, Definitions	1
2. Grant, Right of First Refusal	2
3. Rent	3
4. Term; Termination.	3
5. Tenant's Affirmative Promises.	4
6. Tenant's Negative Promises.	4
7. Landlord's Promises.	4
8. Quiet Enjoyment.	5
9. Alterations	5
10. Insurance.	5
11. Indemnity.	
12. Casualty/Total or Partial Destruction.	10
13. Condemnation/Substantial or Partial Taking.	10
14. Warranty Disclaimer	10
15. Net Rent.	10
16. Appropriations.	11
17. Dispute Resolution	11
18. Prohibited Interests in Contracts.	12
19. Default, Remedies for Default.	13
20. Warranty Disclaimer.	15
21. Miscellaneous.	15
22. Public Information.	1.9
Exhibit A: Description of Premises	10
Exhibit B: Quarterly and Annual Verification of the 5 Acre Crop Yield	20
Exhibit C: Termination Fee Memorandum	51
Exhibit D: Form of Deed	21
THE SUMMER WAS A ANNUAL OF THE AND CORP. CORP. CO. DOUGHER ASSESSED IN A SPECIAL SEASON DESCRIPTION OF SECURISHING AND CONTRACTOR OF SECURISHING AND SECURISH AND SECURI	23

1. Basic Information, Definitions.

Authorizing Ordinance:

Landlord: City of San Antonio

Landlord's Address: P.O. Box 839966, San Antonio, Texas 78283-3966

(Attention: Director, Building and Equipment Services)

Tenant: San Antonio Food Bank, Inc.

Tenant's Address: 5200 Old Highway 90 West, San Antonio, Texas

78227

Premises: Approximately 23.55 acres of land being more fully

described in Exhibit A ("Land").

Permitted Use: Agricultural farming in support of food and nutrition

services to local, needy residents.

Commencement Date: February 1, 2013

Initial Term: Twenty years

Rent: \$1 a year

Binding Date: This Lease is binding on the parties on the later of (A) the

effective date of the Authorizing Ordinance or (B) the later

of the signatures of the two parties.

2. Grant, Right of First Refusal.

2.01. Lease. Landlord leases the Premises to Tenant, and Tenant takes the Premises from Landlord on the terms and conditions of this Lease.

2.02. Right of First Refusal. Before Landlord can sell all or any part of the Premises, Landlord must deliver to Tenant a notice of the terms of a proposed sale. At a minimum, the terms must include the price and the conditions, covenants, representations, and warranties of the buyer and the seller in the proposed sale. Tenant may buy the Premises, or the part thereof being offered for sale, provided Tenant delivers written notice of intent to do so to Landlord within 30 days after receipt of Landlord's notice of terms ("Tenant Purchase Confirmation Date"). For Tenant's obligation to purchase to be binding, the Planning Commission and City Council must approve the sale. The purchase by Tenant must be at the same price and on the same terms as set forth in Landlord's notice. If Tenant notifies Landlord that Tenant will not exercise this right or if Tenant fails to deliver timely notice of intent to purchase prior to the Tenant Purchase Confirmation Date, Landlord may sell the affected portion of the Premises free of any claim of Tenant. Likewise, an unexcused failure to close timely entitles Landlord to sell the affected portion of the Premises free of any claim of Buyer. This right of first refusal ends on the earlier of (1) a sale of all or part of the Premises or (2) termination of this lease.

3. Rent.

Landlord acknowledges receipt in full of all rent due under this Lease for the full Initial Term. Landlord also agrees and acknowledges that additional consideration for the Lease is being provided by Tenant hereunder in the form of (a) Tenant's agreement to use the Premises as a farm in support of food and nutrition services to local, needy residents and (b) Tenant's agreement to donate the crop yield from 5 acres of the premises to Haven for Hope or other City approved Non Profit Organization designated by the Landlord. On an annual basis, beginning October 1, 2013, Tenant will provide Landlord on a quarterly basis starting April 1, 2013 a written confirmation confirming receipt of agricultural products produced from the 5 acre yield in a format similar to that attached in Exhibit B. On a calendar year basis, Tenant shall provide to Landlord on or before February 28th of the year following the year for which the report is being produced a report recapping the quarterly reports and confirming the annual yield of the 5 acres along with a value of the crops produced based on wholesale market pricing.

In addition to the Rent as specified herein, Tenant shall be responsible for all Expenses associated with this Lease as that term is defined in Section 15 below.

4. Term; Termination.

4.01. Term. The "Term" of this Lease is the Initial Term.

4.02. Termination. Either party may terminate this lease at anytime during the Initial Term on six months' written notice. Landlord acknowledges that Tenant plans to install an irrigation system and other fixed asset improvements to the Premises with an estimated value of \$30,000 to \$50,000, the "Initial Investment" and hereby agrees that if Landlord terminates this lease within five years of the Commencement Date, Landlord will reimburse Tenant a portion of Initial Investment as per the following schedule:

Commencement Date thru end of the 36th month of the Term – 80% reimbursement Month 37 thru the end of Month 48 of the Term – 60% reimbursement Month 49 through the end of month 60 of the Term – 50% reimbursement

Should Landlord terminate this lease after the end of the 60th month of the Initial Term, Landlord will have no further obligation to Tenant. The exact cost of the Initial Investment shall be confirmed by the parties based on actual expenses incurred by Tenant as evidenced by appropriate documentation determined to be satisfactory by Landlord including, but not limited to, receipts for work, contracts, and cancelled checks for payment. No later than June 30, 2013 the parties will memorialize the Initial Investment in a form similar to that attached hereto as Exhibit C. In the even the Tenant fails to provide Landlord with the documentation to verify the expenses related to the Initial Investment timely so that the parties can execute the Exhibit C document by June 30, 2013, then in the event this Lease is terminated within the first 60 months of the Initial Term, Landlord shall have no obligation to reimburse Tenant any portion of the Initial Investment.

5. Tenant's Affirmative Promises.

Tenant promises that it will:

- 5.01. Accept the Premises in their present condition "AS IS," the Premises being currently suitable for the Permitted Use.
- 5.02. Obey all applicable laws relating to the use, condition, and occupancy of the Premises.
 - 5.03. Obtain and pay for all utility services used by Tenant.
- 5.04. Allow Landlord to enter the Premises at reasonable times and upon reasonable advance notice of not less than forty-eight (48) hours to perform Landlord's obligations and inspect the Premises.
 - 5.05. Repair, replace, and maintain the Premises, normal wear excepted.
- 5.06 On request, execute an estoppel certificate that states the Commencement Date and duration of the lease, identifies any amendments to the lease, lists defaults by Landlord, and provides any other information reasonably requested. Tenant need not sign any certificate that purports to modify Tenant's obligations in any respect, except for a change in the address for notice or payment of rent.

6. Tenant's Negative Promises.

Tenant promises that it will not:

- 6.01. Use the Premises for any purpose other than the Permitted Use.
- 6.02. Create a nuisance.
- 6.03. Permit waste.
- 6.04. Allow a lien to be placed on the Premises.
- 6.05. Assign this Lease or sublease any portion of the Premises without Landlord's written consent.

7. Landlord's Promises.

Landlord promises that it will lease the Premises to Tenant beginning on the Commencement Date.

8. Quiet Enjoyment.

Landlord must not cause any conditions, restrictions, easements, liens, or encumbrances, except those already in existence as of the date hereof and except those imposed not as owner but as a municipality, to affect the Premises at any time during the Term without the prior written consent of Tenant.

9. Alterations.

Tenant shall have the right to make such improvements or alterations to the Premises as Tenant may elect throughout the Term of this Lease provided that any such improvements or alterations shall be at Tenant's sole cost and expenses and Tenant shall not permit any mechanic's or materialmen's lien to be filed against the Premises in connection therewith. Any physical additions or improvements to the Premises made by Tenant during the Term will become the property of Landlord.

10. Insurance.

10.01. Landlord will not provide any insurance. As a political subdivision of the State of Texas, Landlord is subject to the Texas Tort Claims Act, and the obligations of Landlord and the rights of persons claiming against Landlord are subject to that Act.

10.02. Tenant must maintain throughout the term of this Lease, as it may be extended, insurance coverage written on an occurrence form, by companies authorized and admitted to do business in the State of Texas, rated A or better by A.M. Best Company or otherwise acceptable to Landlord, in the following types and amounts:

Туре:	Amount:
1. Workers' Compensation	Statutory, with a waiver of subrogation in favor of Landlord
2. Employers' Liability	\$500,000/\$500,000/\$500,000 with a waiver of subrogation in favor of Landlord

- 3. Commercial General Public Liability Insurance to include (but not be limited to) coverage for the following:
- For bodily injury, death, and property damage of \$1,000,000 per occurrence, \$2,000,000 general aggregate, or its equivalent in umbrella or excess liability coverage
- (a) Premises/Operations
- (b) Independent Contractors
- (c) Products/Completed Operations
- (d) Contractual Liability
- (e) Personal Injury Liability
- (f) Broad form property damages to include fire legal liability

Coverage for replacement cost of Tenant's improvements

4. Business Automobile Liability, including

Combined single limit for bodily injury, death, and property damage of \$1,0000,000 per occurrence

- (a) Owned/Leased Automobiles
- (b) Non-Owned Automobiles
- (c) Hired Automobiles

10.03. Tenant shall exercise best efforts to have the following clauses included in the insurance policies required by this Lease:

"This insurance cannot be canceled, limited in scope or coverage, or non-renewed until after 60-days' prior written notice has been given to:

and

City Clerk, City of San Antonio City Hall/2nd Floor P. O. Box 839966 San Antonio, Texas 78283-3966

Attention: Risk Manager

Department of Capital Improvements Management Services

City of San Antonio P.O. Box 839966

San Antonio, Texas 78283-3966

Attention: Director"

"The insurance provided by Tenant is primary to any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City of San Antonio."

"Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City of San Antonio applies in excess of, and does not contribute with, insurance provided by this policy."

10.04. Tenant shall exercise best efforts to have the following clauses included in the insurance policies required by this Lease, excepting policies for Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability:

"The City of San Antonio, its officials, employees, representatives and volunteers are added as additional insureds as respects operations and activities of, or on behalf of, the named insured performed under this Lease with the City of San Antonio This policy cannot be invalidated as to Landlord because of Tenant's breach of representation, warranty, declaration, or condition of this policy."

10.05. If Tenant makes leasehold improvements, Tenant must provide Builder's Risk Insurance Coverage, Worker's Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance Coverage, Professional Liability Insurance Coverage and any other liability or other insurance reasonably required by Landlord's Risk Manager with respect to the performance of such leasehold improvements. The policies likewise must be in amounts reasonably required by Landlord's Risk Manager and must cover all risks of physical loss during the term of any construction contract and until work is accepted by the City of San Antonio. Tenant must maintain or cause its contractors to maintain such insurance during the construction phase. Tenant or its contractors or subcontractors must further provide payment and performance bonds naming Landlord as indemnitee. If the construction is minor, Tenant may request the requirements of this Section be waived, but a waiver may be granted only by Landlord's Risk Manager. In deciding whether to waive, Landlord's Risk manager has absolute discretion. The Risk Manager may make the waiver without further action of the City Council.

10.06. Within 30 days after the Occupancy Commencement Date and promptly after Landlord's later request, Tenant must, at its own expense, deliver to Landlord's Risk Manager and to the City Clerk policy declarations pages reflecting all required insurance coverage; provided, however, that Landlord shall not request this information more than once in any twelve (12) month period. Tenant must also deliver copies of policies and endorsements. All endorsements, certificates, and declarations pages must be signed by an authorized representative of the insurance company and must include the signatory's company affiliation and title. If requested by Landlord, Tenant shall exercise best efforts to obtain and deliver to Landlord documentation acceptable to Landlord that confirms that the individual signing the declarations pages, policies, endorsements, and certificates is authorized to do so by the insurance company. Landlord may request changes in policy terms, conditions, limitations, or exclusions (except where established by law) if such changes and

customary for properties or uses similar to the Premises and Tenant's use of the Premises. If Landlord does so and the changes would increase premiums, Landlord will discuss the changes. If Landlord still wants the changes after discussion, Tenant must make the changes and pay the increased cost thereof. Landlord's review and approval of the above documents does not waive noncompliance with the requirements of this Lease.

10.07. Nothing in this <u>Section 10</u> limits Tenant's liability for damages to persons or property resulting from Tenant's activities or the activities of Tenant's agents, employees, sublessees, or invitees.

10.08. This Lease does not create any employee, agent, or invitee relationship between Landlord and Tenant or between Landlord and any person whose presence on the Premises is through Tenant. Landlord shall not be liable for any claims resulting from assertions of tort liability or any obligation for which Tenant may be liable under any workers' compensation, unemployment compensation, disability benefits, similar statutory scheme, except to the extent the same arise out of the negligence, gross negligence or willful act or omission of Landlord.

11. Indemnity.

11.01. These definitions apply to the indemnity provisions in this Section 11:

11.01.01. "Indemnified Claims" mean all loss, cost, liability, or expense, directly or indirectly arising, in whole or in part, out of acts or omissions of any person other than an Indemnitee that give rise to assertions of Indemnitee liability under this Contract, whether or not the person is a party to this agreement. Indemnified Claims include attorneys' fees and court costs and include claims arising from property damage and from personal or bodily injury, including death. Indemnified Claims also include claims in which an Indemnitee shares liability with the Indemnitor, excluding only claims as to which Indemnitees are solely negligent.

11.01.02. "Indemnitees" means the City of San Antonio and its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and other representatives, collectively, against whom an Indemnified Claim has been asserted.

11.01.03. "Indemnitor" means Tenant.

- 11.02. Indemnitor must indemnify Indemnitees, individually and collectively, from all Indemnified Claims. Indemnitor must indemnify Indemnitees from the consequences of their own negligence or from the negligence of any of them for so long as it is not sole negligence.
- 11.03. If Indemnitor and one or more Indemnitees are finally adjudged to be jointly liable for an Indemnified Claim, Indemnitor need not further indemnify the so-adjudged Indemnitees from liability arising from the Indemnitees' adjudicated share of liability. But despite allegations of Indemnitee negligence, Indemnitor must nevertheless defend all Indemnitees until final adjudication. Indemnitor may not recover sums previously spent defending or otherwise indemnifying the Indemnitee who has been adjudged to be negligent and must continue to indemnify other Indemnitees.
- 11.04. There are no third-party beneficiaries of this indemnity other than the category of people and entities included within the definition of Indemnitees..
- 11.05. Indemnitor must promptly advise the City of San Antonio in writing of any Indemnified Claim and must, at its own cost, investigate and defend the Indemnified Claim. The City may, at its own expense, hire separate counsel to represent some or all Indemnitees. No such actions release or impair Indemnitor's obligations under this indemnity paragraph. Regardless of who selects the counsel, the counsel's clients are Indemnitees, not Indemnitor.
- 11.06. In addition to the indemnity required under this Lease, each Indemnitee may, at its own expense, participate in its defense by counsel of its choosing without relieving or impairing Indemnitor's obligations under this indemnity paragraph.
- 11.07. Indemnitor may not settle any Indemnified Claim without the consent of the City of San Antonio, whether or not the City is an Indemnitee as to the particular Indemnified Claim, unless (A) the settlement will be fully funded by Indemnitor and (B) the proposed settlement does not contain an admission of liability or wrongdoing by any Indemnitee. The City's withholding its consent as allowed in the preceding sentence does not release or impair Indemnitor's obligations of this indemnity paragraph. Even if the City of San Antonio is not an Indemnitee as to a particular Indemnified Claim, Indemnitor must give City at least 20 days advance written notice of the details of a proposed settlement before it becomes binding. Any settlement purporting to bind an Indemnitee must first be approved by City Council.

- 11.08. Nothing in this Lease waives governmental immunity or other defenses of Indemnitees under applicable law.
- 11.09. If, for whatever reason, a court refuses to enforce this indemnity as written, and only in that case, the parties must contribute to any Indemnified Claim 5% by the Indemnitees and 95% by the Indemnitor. Indemnitor need look only to the City of San Antonio for Indemnitees' 5% if the City of San Antonio is an Indemnified Party as to a particular Indemnified Claim.

12. Casualty/Total or Partial Destruction.

All risk of loss is allocated to Tenant, and upon the occurrence of any casualty, Tenant shall be responsible for the repair and restoration of the Premises to substantially its condition prior to the occurrence of the casualty and Tenant shall be entitled to the proceeds of any insurance proceeds attributable to such casualty. Landlord shall have no obligation under this Lease to repair or rebuild the Premises in the event of casualty.

13. Condemnation/Substantial or Partial Taking.

If the Premises or any portion of them are taken by eminent domain, or sale in lieu of eminent domain, by any entity other than Landlord, the Lease automatically terminates as to the part so taken as of the date the condemning authority takes title or possession, whichever occurs first.

14. Warranty Disclaimer.

There are no implied warranties of merchantability, of fitness for a particular purpose, or of any other kind arising out of this lease, and there are no warranties that extend beyond those expressly stated in this Lease.

15. Net Rent.

The Rent payable under this Lease shall be <u>absolutely net</u> to Landlord so that this Lease shall yield, net to Landlord, the Rent specified herein throughout the Term and all insurance premiums obtained by Tenant pursuant to this Lease, utility charges, expenses for ordinary maintenance and repairs, all expenses related to compliance with laws (including any ad valorem property taxes assessed against the Premises), and all other costs, fees, charges, expenses, reimbursements and obligations of every kind and nature whatsoever relating to Tenant's occupancy of the Premises that may arise or become due during the Term or by reason of events occurring during or prior to the Term (all such items being hereinafter collectively called "Expenses") shall be paid or discharged by Tenant.

.

16. Appropriations.

All obligations of the City of San Antonio under this instrument are funded subject to the discretion of City Council whether to appropriate funding. If the City Council fails to appropriate money for any obligation under this agreement, the City may terminate this agreement and have no further liability.

17. Dispute Resolution.

- 17.01. Before bringing any action arising out of this Lease, including an action for declaratory relief but not an action specifically excepted below, the disputants must first submit in good faith to mediation. The parties may not assert limitations, laches, waiver, and estoppel based upon attempts to mediate.
- 17.02. Filing suit on a claim that should be mediated hereunder waives the filer's right to demand mediation. But one party's waiver does not affect another party's right. A defendant does not waive mediation for so long as, within a reasonable time after appearing, the defendant gives written notice to the plaintiff or its counsel of intent to require compliance with this paragraph.
 - 17.03. Mediation must be conducted in San Antonio, Bexar County, Texas.
- 17.04. The party desiring relief has the burden to initiate mediation. Waiting for another party to initiate mediation does not waive the right to it.
- 17.05. If the parties can otherwise agree on a mediator, they may do so. Alternatively, either party may petition any court of competent jurisdiction to appoint a mediator. The only predicate issues the court need consider before appointing a mediator are whether (i) the copy of this Lease before the court is authentic and (ii) this Lease was duly signed and delivered by all parties to be bound to mediate. If neither of those issues is denied under oath, the court may appoint a mediator upon motion, without trial.
 - 17.06. Mediator fees must be borne equally.
- 17.07. The parties need not mediate before going to court (1) for either party to seek emergency injunctive relief, or (2) for Landlord to seek forcible entry and detainer relief against Tenant.

18. Prohibited Interests in Contracts.

- 18.01. The Charter of the City of San Antonio and its Ethics Code prohibit a City officer or employee, as defined in Section 2-52 of the Ethics Code, from having a financial interest in any contract with the City or any City agency such as city owned utilities. An officer or employee has a "prohibited financial interest" in a contract with the City or in the sale to the City of land, materials, supplies or service, if any of the following individual(s) or entities is a party to the contract or sale:
 - (i) a City officer or employee;
 - (ii) his parent, child or spouse;
 - (iii) a business entity in which the officer or employee, or his parent, child or spouse owns (i) 10% or more of the voting stock or shares of the business entity, or (ii) 10% or more of the fair market value of the business entity:
 - (iv) a business entity in which any individual or entity above listed is a (i) subcontractor on a City contract, (ii) a partner, or (iii) a parent or subsidiary business entity.
 - 18.02. Tenant warrants and certifies as follows:
 - (i) Tenant and Tenant's officers, employees and agents are neither officers nor employees of the City.
 - (ii) Tenant has tendered to the City a Discretionary Contracts Disclosure Statement in compliance with the City's Ethics Code.
- 18.03. Tenant acknowledges that City's reliance on the above warranties and certifications is reasonable.

19. Default, Remedies for Default.

- 19.01. Events of Default. If Tenant permits or fails to prevent any of the following occurrences, it is a Tenant event of default:
 - 19.01.01. Tenant fails to pay when due any installment of Rent or any Expenses, and such default continues for thirty (30) days after written notice from Landlord.
 - 19.01.02. Tenant fails to comply with any term, provision or covenant of this Lease, other than the payment of rental or Expenses demanded by Landlord and does not cure such failure within sixty (60) days after written notice thereof to Tenant; provided, however, that if such failure cannot be cured by through the exercise of commercially reasonable efforts within such sixty

- (60) day period, then the cure period shall be extended for so long as is necessary to permit Tenant to cure such failure through the exercise of reasonable diligence and for so long as Tenant is exercising reasonable diligence in curing such failure.
- 19.01.03. This Lease or the Premises or any part thereof is taken upon execution or by other process of law directed against Tenant, and the attachment is not to be discharged or disposed of within sixty (60) days after the levy thereof.
- 19.01.06. Tenant deserts, vacates or abandons all or any portion of the Premises, or ceases to physically occupy any substantial portion of the Premises and continuously operate its business on the Premises, or fails to commence business operations in the Premises on or before the Occupancy Commencement Date. If Tenant removes or makes preparations to remove its goods, equipment, inventory, and fixtures (other than in the normal course of business) in amounts sufficient to indicate a probable intent to vacate the Premises, Tenant's breach is established conclusively.
- 19.01.07. Tenant does or permits to be done anything which creates a lien upon the Premises which is not removed or released within 30 days of its filing.
- 19.02. Remedies for Default. Upon the occurrence of any Tenant event of default, Landlord shall have the option to pursue any one or more of the following:
 - 19.02.01 Terminate this Lease and all rights of Tenant hereunder upon thirty (30) days prior written notice. Upon termination, Tenant must immediately surrender the Premises to Landlord. If Tenant fails to do so, Landlord may, without prejudice to any other remedy, enter and take possession of the Premises or any part thereof and expel or remove Tenant and any other person who may be occupying the Premises or any part thereof, by force if necessary, without being liable for prosecution or any claim of damages. Landlord's remedies and rights under this Lease entirely supersede and supplant the provisions of Texas Property Code § 93.002.
 - 19.02.02. Enter upon and take possession of the Premises or any part thereof and expel or remove Tenant and any other person who may be occupying said Premises or any part thereof, by force if necessary, without being liable for prosecution or any claim for damages therefor without having terminated the Lease.

19.02.03. Enter upon the Premises, by force if necessary, without being liable for prosecution or any claim for damages, and do whatever Tenant is obligated to do under the terms of this Lease. In such case, Tenant must reimburse Landlord on demand for expenses Landlord may incur in thus effecting compliance with Tenant's obligations. Landlord is not liable for any damages resulting to the Tenant from such action.

19.03. Effect of Termination. If Landlord terminates the Lease for an event of default, then Landlord need not convey the Premises to the Tenant at the end of the Initial Term or otherwise.

19.04. Default by Landlord. If Landlord defaults, Tenant's exclusive remedy is an action for damages (Tenant hereby waiving the benefit of any laws granting it a lien upon the property of Landlord or on rent due Landlord). Tenant is not permitted to withhold Rent. Before filing any such action Tenant must give Landlord 30-days prior written notice specifying the alleged default and giving Landlord opportunity to cure. Unless and until Landlord fails to timely cure a default after written notice, Tenant has no remedy or cause of action by reason thereof. All obligations of Landlord are covenants, not conditions. Landlord's liability to Tenant for default is limited to actual, direct, but not consequential, damages. Tenant hereby waives its statutory lien under § 91.004 of the Texas Property Code.

19.05. Rights Respecting Personal Property. If Landlord takes possession of the Premises under the authority of this Lease, Landlord may keep in place and use all furniture, fixtures, and equipment at the Premises, including that owned by or leased to Tenant at all times before foreclosure thereon by Landlord or repossession thereof by any lessor thereof or lienholder thereon. Landlord may also remove from the Premises (without obtaining a distress warrant, writ of sequestration, or other legal process) all or any part of the furniture, fixtures, equipment, and other property and place same in storage anywhere in the county in which the Premises are located. In such case, Tenant is liable to Landlord for costs incurred by Landlord in the removal and storage and must indemnify Landlord from all loss, damage, cost, expense, and liability arising from or relating to the removal and storage. Landlord also may relinquish all or any part of the furniture, fixtures, equipment, and other property to any person ("Claimant") who presents to Landlord a copy of any instrument represented to have been executed by Tenant, if the instrument purports to grant Claimant the right under various circumstances to take possession of the property. Landlord need not inquire into the authenticity of the instrument or Tenant's or Tenant's predecessor's signature thereon. Landlord further need not investigate or inquire into the validity of the factual or legal basis on which Claimant purports to act. Tenant shall indemnify Landlord from all loss, cost, liability, or expense arising from or relating to Landlord's relinquishment of property to a Claimant. These rights of Landlord are additional to any other rights that Landlord has or may hereafter have at law or in equity. Tenant stipulates that the rights herein granted Landlord are commercially reasonable.

19.06. Cumulative Remedies. Each right and remedy provided to Landlord and Tenant in this Lease is cumulative to every other right or remedy provided to Landlord by this Lease or applicable law, including, but not limited to, suits for injunctive relief and specific performance. The exercise or beginning of the exercise by Landlord or Tenant of one or more of the right or remedy does not preclude the simultaneous or later exercise by Landlord or Tenant of another remedy. All costs incurred by Landlord in collecting any amounts and damages owed by Tenant under this Lease or to enforce any provision of it, including reasonable attorneys' fees from the date any such matter is turned over to litigation counsel, are also recoverable by Landlord from Tenant.

20. Warranty Disclaimer.

- 20.01. There are no implied warranties of merchantability, of fitness for a particular purpose, or of any other kind arising out of this lease, and there are no warranties that extend beyond those expressly stated in this Lease. Without limitation, this Lease contains no express or implied warranty that the Premises have no latent defects or that the Premises are or will remain suitable for Tenant's purposes.
- 20.02. Tenant acknowledges it has had ample opportunity to perform due diligence regarding the Premises and accepts the Premises in their present condition, as-is.

21. Miscellaneous.

- 21.01. Applicable Law. This Lease is entered into in San Antonio, Bexar County, State of Texas. Its Construction And The Rights, Remedies, And Obligations Arising Under It Are Governed by The Laws of The State Of Texas. But the Texas conflicts of law rules must not be used to apply the laws of a jurisdiction other than Texas. Both parties' obligations under this Lease are performable in San Antonio, Bexar County, Texas, and venue for any action arising under this Lease is only in Bexar County, Texas.
- 21.02. Severability. If any part of this Lease is found invalid or unenforceable, the finding does not affect the remainder.
- 21.03. Successors. This Lease inures to the benefit of and binds the heirs, representatives, successors, and permitted assigns of each party. This clause does not authorize any assignment not otherwise authorized.
- 21.04. Integration. This Written Agreement Represents The Final Agreement Between The Parties And May Not Be Contradicted By Evidence Of Prior, Contemporaneous, Or Subsequent Oral Agreements Of The Parties. There Are No Oral Agreements Between The Parties.

- 21.05. Modification. This Lease may be changed only by a written agreement, signed by the party against whom enforcement of any modification is sought. Subject to that restriction, any of this Lease's terms may be modified by the party entitled to their benefit, but no modification, express or implied, affects the right of the modifying party either (i) to apply any other term or condition or (ii) to apply the same term or condition to a later or earlier occasion. Any modification of this Lease must be authorized by an ordinance adopted by City Council that specifically addresses the modification.
- 21.06. Third Party Beneficiaries. This Lease benefits the parties and their successors and permitted assigns only. It has no third party beneficiaries.
- 21.07. Notices. Any notice, demand or other communication provided for or permitted hereunder must be in writing and delivered to the person to whom the notice is directed, either in person, by overnight delivery service, facsimile with confirmed receipt, or by mail as a registered or certified item, return receipt requested, at the respective addressed set forth in the preamble hereof. Notices delivered by mail shall be deemed given upon the date when deposited in a post office or other depository under the care or custody of the United States Postal Service, enclosed in a wrapper with proper postage affixed, and notices delivered by other means shall be effective when received by the party to whom the same is addressed. Failure to use certified mail does not defeat the effectiveness of notice actually received, but such notice is effective only on actual receipt. Address for notice may be changed by giving notice hereunder.
- 21.08. Captions. Paragraph captions are for ease of reference only and do not affect the interpretation.
- 21.09. Counterparts. This Lease may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which is an original, whether or not all parties sign the same document. Regardless of their number, counterparts constitute only one agreement. In making proof of this Lease, one need not produce or account for more counterparts than necessary to show execution by or on behalf of all parties.
- 21.10. Further Assurances. The parties must execute and deliver such additional documents and instruments as may be necessary to effect fully the provisions hereof. But no such additional documents can alter the rights or obligations of the parties stated in this agreement.
- 21.11. Administrative Actions and Agreements. The Director of Building and Equipment Services may, without further council action, agree to, sign, and deliver on behalf of the City all consents, certificates, memoranda, estoppels, and modifications of nonmaterial rights and obligations arising under this Lease and may declare Landlord defaults and pursue remedies for such defaults. This paragraph does not authorize lease amendments or renewals without council consent.

- 21.12. Conflicts Between Numbers Stated Two Ways. Whenever this lease states numbers more than one way, either by using both words and numerals or by stating a fixed amount and a calculation for arriving at an amount, and there is a conflict, the lowest number controls.
- 21.13. *Incorporation of Exhibits*. All exhibits to this Lease are incorporated into it for all purposes as if fully set forth.
- 21.14 No Duty to a Person not a Party. Nothing in this Lease shall be construed to create any duty to, any standard of care with reference to, or any liability to anyone not a party, except as otherwise expressly provided herein.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.]

22. Public Information.

Landlord:

Landlord acknowledges that this instrument is public information within the meaning of Chapter 552 of the Texas Government Code and accordingly may be disclosed to the public. Nothing in this Lease waives an otherwise applicable exception to disclosure.

In Witness Whereof, the parties have caused their representatives to set their hands.

Tenant:

City of San Antonio, a Texas municipal corporation	The San Antonio Food Bank, a Texas non-profit corporation
Signature:	Signature:
Printed	Printed Name: Ext 5, (oppose
Name:	Title: (EU
Date:	Date: nulla
Attest:	
City Clerk	
Approved as to Form:	
City Attorney	

Exhibit A: Description of Premises				
				
		Page 19 of 26 Pa	ges	

Exhibit B: Quarterly and Annual Verification of the 5 Acre Crop Yield

For the period for	to	
	s were cultivated from a 5 acre poservice provider as designated by the	
For the reporting p	period 100% of the corps detailed	below were received by:
Crop	Wholesale Dollar Value Per Unit of Measurement	Total Wholesale Value
Examples Include 30 boxes of Ice Berg Lettuce	36 heads per box with a value of \$1 per head	\$1,080.00
750 lbs. of green beans	\$0.85 per lbs.	\$637.50
1,000 lbs of yellow squash	\$0.50 per lbs.	\$500.00
1,000 cucumbers	\$0.75 each	\$750.00
	TOTAL VALUE OF YIELD DISTRIBUTED DURING REPORTING PERIOD	\$2,967.50

Exhibit C: Termination Fee Memorandum

Termination Fee Memorandum Landlord: San Antonio Food Bank, Inc., Tenant: City of San Antonio Ground Lease of 23.X acres located at YYYYYY, San Antonio and authorized by the Authorizing Ordinance. **Authorizing Ordinance:** Predicate Facts: Landlord and Tenant are parties to the Lease, which was authorized by the Authorizing Ordinance. Paragraph 4.01 of the Lease permits Landlord to terminate the Lease before expiration of the Term if it pays a termination fee. This memorandum sets out the termination fee Landlord and Tenant agree is due if Landlord terminates early according to section 4.01.. Rights and Obligations: Now Therefore, in consideration of the premises, the mutual covenants and promises contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 1. Defined Terms. All terms used in this memorandum and not otherwise defined herein but defined in the Lease have the meanings ascribed to them in that instrument. 2. Termination Fee. The total Initial Investment is \$ This is comprised of the following general categories and dollar amounts: Irrigation Piping and Installation: Wells or Water Meter Install: Fencing: Land Clearing: Other List Separately: TOTAL 3. Conflict of Terms. This instrument controls over anything to the contrary in the Lease.

In Witness Whereof, the parties have caus Tenant	ed their representatives to set their hands. Landlord
City of San Antonio, a Texas municipal corporation	San Antonio Food Bank, LLC
Signature:	Ву:
	Printed
Printed	Name
Name:	
Title;	Title:
Date:	Date:
	Ву:
Approved as to Form:	Printed
	Name:
City Attorney	Title
	Date:

Exhibit D: Form of Deed

Notice of Confidentiality Rights: If You Are a Natural Person, You May Remove or Strike Any or All the Following Information from Any Instrument That Transfers an Interest in Real Property Before it Is Filed for Record in the Public Records: Your Social Security Number or Your Driver's License Number.

State of Texas }
County of Bexar }

Deed Without Warranty

Authorizing Ordinance:

Statutory Authority: Texas Local Government Code § 253.011

Grantor: City of San Antonio

Grantor's Mailing City Of San Antonio, P.O. Box 839966, San Antonio,

Address: Texas 78283-3966 (Attn: City Clerk)

Grantor's Street

Address: City Hall, 100 Military Plaza, San Antonio, Texas 78205

Grantee: San Antonio Food Bank

Grantee's Mailing
Address: 5200 Old Highway 90 West, San Antonio, Texas 78227

Audi 622:

Consideration: \$10 in hand paid and other good and valuable

consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which are

hereby acknowledged.

Property: Approximately 23.05 acres of land being more fully

described in Exhibit A ("Land"), which is hereby incorporated for all purposes as if fully set forth.

Grantor, for the Consideration, Grants, Bargains, and Conveys the Property to Grantee, together with all and singular the rights and appurtenances thereto in anywise belonging, To Have and To Hold unto Grantee, Grantee's successors and assigns forever, Without Any Express Or Implied Warranty Whatsoever, Including But Not Limited to Warranties of Title, Condition, or Character.

The Property is conveyed together with any and all improvements, structures and fixtures located thereon, and with all rights, privileges, rights of way, and easements appurtenant thereto, unless reserved unto other parties herein.

Reservations, Restrictions, Exceptions, And Conditions To Conveyance: This conveyance is explicitly subject to the following:

A. Reservations: Grantor reserves the following reverter:

Reverter. After a one-year grace period after the recording of this deed, at such time as Grantee, or its successor in interest, fails or ceases to use the Property primarily for agricultural farming in support of food and nutrition services to local, needy residents, the Property automatically reverts to Grantee. This reversion occurs without action by Grantor and without notice to Grantee.

- B. Easements: All recorded and unrecorded easements, whether or not open and obvious.
- C. Restrictions: All covenants and restrictions affecting the Property.
- D. Exceptions: All instruments affecting the Property, whether or not recorded.
- E. Conditions: All conditions affecting the Property.

This conveyance does not relieve Grantee of any building, zoning, or other cityimposed requirements, or other land use restrictions applicable to the Property or the obligation to pay any real estate taxes that may otherwise be due.

Grantor expressly disclaims any and all warranties arising by common law, statute (including without limitation the implied warranties of § 5.023, Texas Property Code or any successor statute), or otherwise.

In purchasing the Property, Grantee is not relying upon any representation, statement, or other assertion from or chargeable to Grantor. Grantee, on behalf of itself and anyone claiming by, through, or under Grantee, by acceptance of this deed, releases Grantor from any and all claims that Grantee or anyone claiming

by, through, or under Grantee, may now have or hereafter acquires against Grantor arising out of or related to this acquisition. This release applies according to its express terms and provisions, including, but not limited to unknown and unsuspected claims, damages, and causes of action.

Setting Out The Specific Reservations And Disclaimers Does Not Imply That The Property Is Free Of Other Encumbrances Or Adverse Claims Or Conditions. Grantor Specifically Disclaims Any Such Implication.

In Witness Whereof, Grantor has caused its representative to set its hand:

Grantor:

City of San Antonio, a Texas municicorporation By:	Ву:
Printed Name:	_ Approved As To Form:
Title:	By:
Date:	City Attorney
The State of Texas }	
,	
County of Bexar }	
Before me, the undersigned authority, of and for corporation, on behalf of that entity in	this instrument was this day acknowledged by or the City of San Antonio, a Texas municipal the capacity stated
or portaining of bottom of the office, in	the capacity stated.
Date:	Notary Public, State of Texas
1	My Commission Expires:

Page 25 of 26 Pages

Exhibit A

